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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the members of ADD REALTY LIMITED
Repart on the audit of the financial statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of ADD REALTY LIMITED {the ‘Company’), which comprise the
balance sheet as at 31 March 2022, the statement of profit and loss (including Other Comprehensive
income), the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the financial statements, including a summary of the significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
financial statements give the information required by the Companies ,2013 (‘the Act”)in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under
Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Rule. 2015, as amended {‘Ind
AS’) and the other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company
as at 31 March 2022, and its profit, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for
the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financia! statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs)
specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our

report.

We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the institute of
Chartered Accountants of India {ICAl) together with the independent requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements
and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics.

i jali 700071, india
Head office : 8B Middleton Street, 6A Geetanjali, Kolkata . .
T. +913322298936/6758/3237/4473 F. +91 3322264140, 2265 5830 E. kolkata@maheshwariassociates.com
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Information Other than the Financial statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the board’s report including annexures to boards report

and shareholder’s information. but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit, or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.

lf, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard,

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements.

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies
Act, 2013 (the 'Act’) with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair
view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and
changes in equity of the Company in accordance with Ind AS and the other accounting principles generally
accepted in India.

This responsibility atso includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds
and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design. implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and compteteness of
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give
a true and fair view and are free from material risstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to

continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liguidate the Company or cease

operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.
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The Board of Directors of the Company are responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s responsibility for the audit of the Financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
Includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit

conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs. we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

»  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3){i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial
controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management,

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditionss that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Qur conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as

a going concern.
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* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in
a manner that achieves fair presentation,

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in aggregate,
makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial

statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning
the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any
identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal

control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Report on other legal and Regulatory requirements
T} Asrequired by Section 143 (3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

(a) we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit:

(b) in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books:

{c) the balance sheet. the statement of profit and loss including other comprehensive income , the
statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows dealt with by this report are in
agreement with the books of account:

{d) in our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards
notified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules.
2015, as amended;

(e) on the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on
31 March 2022 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as
on 313 March 2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act: and

%/
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(f)

(h)

Accountants

with respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over the financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer our separate report in
Annexure”A”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating
effectiveness of the company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting,

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
company has not paid any remuneration to its directors during the year and accordingly the
provisions of section 197 of the Act are not applicable,

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies {Audit and Additors) Rules. 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigation on its financial position in its
financial statements.

if. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses;

ii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and

Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. (@) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other
than as disclosed in the nates to the financial statements, no funds have been advanced or
loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or
xind of funds) by the company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign entity
{(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that
the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the tike on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries;

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of ijts knowledge and belief, other
than as disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, no funds have been received by
the company from any person or entity, including foreign entity (“Funding Parties”), with
the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall,
whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other bersons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide
any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries : and

(c) Based on our audit procedures that we have been considered reasonable and appropriate
in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations provided by the management under sub-clause (a) and (b) above contain any
material misstatement.

(d) The Company has not declared any dividend during the year. %
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2) As required by the Companies {(Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (the ‘Order’) issued by the Central
Government of india in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in Annexure ‘B’ to this Report, a
statement on the matters specified in para 3 and 4 of the said Order, to the extent applicable.

For Maheshwari & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.: 311008E

P

-

Sateesh Patil

Partner

Membership No.; 227311
UDIN: 22227311AJZQEH4237

Place: Bengaluru
Date: 30th May 2022
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Annexure “A” to the Independent Auditor’s Report

(Referred to in paragraph 1 (f) under ‘Report on other legal and regulatory requirements’ section of
our report to the Members of ADD REALTY LIMITED of even date)

Report on the internal financial controls over financial reporting under clause (i) of sub - section 3 of
section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of ADD REALTY LIMITED (“the
Company”} as at March 31, 2022, in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company
for the year ended on that date.

Management’s responsibility for internal financial controls
y

The board of directors of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria estabtished by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
(‘ICAI"). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financtal controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to company's policies. the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013,

Auditors’ responsibility

Qur respensibility is to €Xpress an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India and the standards on auditing prescribed under Section 143 (10) of the
Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and. both issued by
the tnstitute of chartered Accountants of India. Those standards and the guidance note require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting were established and maintained and
if such controls operated effectively in all materia! respects.

financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls
over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement in the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial control system over financial reporting.

&
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Meaning of internal financial controls over financial reporting

A company’s internal financial controt over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal
financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (i} pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (ii) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded
as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (iii) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financiat controls over financial reporting. including the
possibility of collusion or improper management of override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has, in all
material respects, an adequate internal financial control system over financial reporting and such internal
financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2022, based on the
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internat control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Maheshwari & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Firm Re istr\at'on No. 311008E

Sateesh Patil

Partner

Membership No. 227311
UDIN © 22227311AJZQEHA4237

Place: B
Date: 30th May 2022
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Annexure - B to the Independent Auditors’ Report

Referred to in paragraph 2 under “Report an Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” Section of our
report to the members of ADD REALTY LIMITED of even date,

Based on the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting a true and fair view on the financial
statements of the Company and taking into consideration the information and explanations given to us and
the books of account and other records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we report that:

{1) In respect of company’s Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets:

a) A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particutars, including quantitative

details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

B} The Company has no intangible assets. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(i)(a)(B) of the
Qrder are not applicable,

The Property, Plant and Equipment have been physically verified by the management during the
year and according to the information and explanation given no material discrepancies were noticed
on such verification. In our opinion, the frequency of verification of the Property, Plant and
Equipment is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets.

c) The title deeds of all the immovable properties are held in the name of the Company except the

following free hold lands:

i)With respect to the free hold land purchased through sale deed dated 14th May 2008 located at
Coonoor having a carrying value of Rs. 58,550.00 thousands is held jointly with other companies {Viz,
M/s Meena Holdings Limited, M/s. Arihant Leasing And Holdings Limited, M/s. SPM Engineers Ltd,
M/7s. SPML India Limited, M/s. Zoom Industrial Services Ltd, M/s. Rishab Commerciats Private Limited,
M/s. Abhinandan Enterprises Pvt Ltd, M/s. Subhash Systems Private Limited. M/s. Technomechanical
services Pvt Ltd, M/s. Subhash international Pvt Ltd, M/s. International Constructions Limited and
M/s. 20TH Century Engineering Limited). All the other companies have assigned their interest in
favor of ADD Realty Limited (the Company) vide assignment deed dated 14th May 2008.

i} With respect to the free hold land added to property, plant and equipment on account of, approval
of scheme of amalgamation by Hon’ble NCLT bench at Bangalore through merger order vide dated
16thOctober 2017, giving the effective date of 1st Aprit 2016, are still in the name of ADD Eco Enviro
Limited ("Transferor Company No 1) and Sanmati Power Company Private Limited ("Transferor
Company No 2"). The Transferee Company is in the process of getting the title deeds transferred in

their name.
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d) The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment (including right-of-use

assets) during the year.

e) No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the Company as at
March 31, 2022 for holding any Benamj property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition)
Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder.

(i1) a) The Company does not hold any Inventory. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(ii)(a) of the Order

are not applicable.

at

b) According to the information and explanations given to us, and the records examined by us,
the Company has not been sanctioned any working capital limits aggregating to more than five
crores by banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets at any point
of time of the year. Hence reporting under paragraph 3(ii)(b) of the Order does not arise.

(111} a) The Company has granted loan, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability
Partnerships (LLPs) or other parties covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of
the Act, and details for the same are as follows:

A.  Details of Loans or Advances and Guarantees or Security granted to subsidiaries, joint ventures
and associates
{Amount in Rs. '000)
‘Name ~ of  the i Nature ~of [ Nature  of | Aggregate " Balance
Concern " Relationship © transaction | amount  during outstanding
1 ‘ : "the FY - the balance sheet
; Ratnatary Mega fSubﬁdiary Company I'Toan ' 1 172.50 + 172.50
' Food Park Pvt Ltd * l‘ I L I
" ADD  Elcina | Subsidiary | Loan o 78.24 78.24
"Electronics  Park | ! |
' Pyt Ltd * i l
SPML Infrastructure | Enterprises in which ' Loan 55,400.00 50,184.80
Limited * ' KMP/Relatives of KMP

s not having significant ;

, influence or control . !
~ADD Energy ' Enterprises in which  Loan i 21,426.37 | 10,961,466
. Management | KMP/Relatives of KMP | ' :
" Company  Private - having significant | ! |
'Limited . influence or control ! |
"Delhi” T Waste !‘Enterprise's_"'i'h whi'c"rTthﬁn T TTT6,500.00 ~Nil
| Management | KMP/Relatives of KMP | : !
i Najafgarh Private | having significant ;
Ltd | influence or control | f !
ADD T industrial | Subsidiary Companies | Loan .* 264.42 Nil
" Park(TamilNadu) ! !

“Limited *
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B.

a. Loans or Advances and Guarantees or Security to parties other than subsidiaries, joint

ventures and associates
{Amount in Rs. '000)

' Name of the Concern | Nature of " Aggregate amount Balance :
. transaction during the FY outstanding at the

: : balance sheet '

| Surendra Kumar Jain * '~ Advance ' Nil " 800.00 -

| Kataria Industrial Park Pvt  Loan 21,000 121,000 |

Limited * | | |

| Upskill Management Loan NIl  1,675.98

Services Pvt Ltd

b. According to the information and explanations given to us, and the records examined by us,
the investments made, guarantees provided, security given and the terms and conditions of
the grant of all loans and advances in the nature of loans and guarantees provided are not
prejudicial to the company’s interest except for loans given to 6 parties 1}IRatnatary Mega
Food Park Pvt Ltd , 2) ADD Elcira Electronics Park Pvt Ltd 3) SPML Infrastructure Limited 4)
ADD Industrial Park {(TamilNadu) Limited 5) Surendra Kumar Jain 6) Upskill Management
Services Pvt Ltd.

) In our opinion and according to information and explanation given to us, in respect of loans
and advances in the nature of loans, the company has stipulated the terms and conditions as
on demand. Since, the company has not demanded the loans and interest. the repayment of
principal and payment of interest is regular.

d} According to the information and explanations given to us, and the records examined by us,
since the company has not demanded the loans during the year, there are no overdue amounts.

e) According to the information and explanations given to us, and the records examined by us,
there is no loan or advance in the nature of loan granted which has fallen due during the year,
has been renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to settle the overdues of existing toans
given to the same parties, Hence reporting under paragraph 3(iii}(e} of the Order does not

arise.




MAHESHWARI & ASSOCIATES

Chartered Accountants

f) According to the in information and exptanations given to us, and the records examined by us,
the company has granted (oans or advances in the nature of loans repayable on demand
(Amount in Rs. '000)

| Name of the ' Nature of | Aggregate . % thereafter of
. Concern i Relationship -amount  during | to the total|
' ‘ the FY loans  granted !
Ratnatary Mega | Sub51d1ary Company 17250 0.20
' Food Park Pvt | | |
| Ltd i |
" ADD Elcina | Subsidiary * 78.24 0.09 |
" Electronics Park
Pyt Ltd * ; : |
" SPML " Enterprises in which 55,400.00 59.13
Infrastructure | KMP/Relatives  of | | i
. Limited * 'KMP  not  having ' i |
i “significant ; ‘ :
! J influence or control ' j
ADD Cnergy = Enterprises in which 21,426.37 12.92
\ Management | KMP/Relatives  of |
- Company Private ' KMP having | ;
! Limited \ significant ! '
’ | influence or controt l |
- Delhi Waste | ‘Enterprises in which 16,500.00 Nil
Management KMP/Relatives  of |
i Najafgarh KMP havmg
Private Ltd ssignificant
: influence or control ‘ |
“ADD  Industrial * Subsidiary 264.42 | Nil ‘
. Park(TamilNadu) Compam’es : ‘
L Limited * L
' Surendra Kumar Others : Nil 0.94
Jain ; '
' Kataria Others ' 21,000.00 | 24.74
“Industrial  Park - j ‘
| Pvt Limited | 3 i J
’ Upskillt | Others o Nil 1.97
| Management ’ | i |
| |
5 N

! Services Pvt Ltd

(iv) According to the information and explanations given to us, and the records examined by us, in
respect of loans, investments, guarantees, and security, the provisions of sections 185 and 186
of the Companies Act have been complied with.

{v) The Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the
Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, the

provisions of clause 3(v) of the Order are not applicable
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(vi)

{vii)

viii)

{ix) a

b

c)

)

—

To the best of our knowledge and belief, the Central Government has not specified
maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Act, in respect of
Company's products/services. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3{vi) of the Order are not
applicable,

According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of statutory dues:

The Company is generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including provident fund,
employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, Goods and Services tax, duty of
customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other material statutory dues, as applicable,
with the appropriate authorities, except for below where the arrears of outstanding statutory dues
as on the last day of the financial year concerned for a period of more than six months from the
date they became payable.

| Name of the ! Nature ‘of { Amount  (INR | Period ~ to DueDate !Date of
| Statute ' Dues | in *000) “which amount | Payment
' ! | relates ‘
Tamit  Nadu Stamp Duty 2.380.82 2017-18 0w "ffébrd'a_r_'{/_mbutyet paid -
stamp  duty ' 2018 ‘
1 H . i

| | 1
L i R B [ - . L. R L

act, 1994 | | | !
There are no statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a), which have not been deposited
on account of dispute.

There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income
Tax Act, 1961.

According to the infermation and explanations given to us, the company has not defaulted in
repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender,
hence reporting under paragraph 3(ix){a) of the Order does not arise.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, The Company
has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or
any government authority.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has
applied term loans for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.

&
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d)

e)

(x} a)

(xi) a)

b}

)

(xii)

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the funds raised
on short term basis have not been utilized for long term purposes,

According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not taken any
funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries,
associates or joint ventures.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has
not raised loans during the year on the piedge of securities held in its subsidiaries, joint
ventures or associate companies.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company did
not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt
instruments) and hence, reporting under this paragraph 3(x}(a) of the order is not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not made any preferentiat allotment or private placement of shares or convertible debentures
{futly, partialty or optionally convertible) during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3 {x) (b) of
the Order is not applicable.

To the best ¢f our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us,
no fraud by the Company or no material fraud on the Company by any person has been noticed
or reported during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (xi} (a) of the Order is not applicable.

Since there is no fraud by the Company or no material fraud on the Company by any person
has been noticed or repcrted during the year. paragraph 3 (xi) (b} of the Order is not
applicable.

To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us,
the provisions relating to whistle-blower mechanism is not applicable to the company.
Accordingly, paragraph 3 (xi) (c) of the Order is not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company is not a nidhi company:. Accordingly, paragraph 3{xii) of the Order is not
applicable.

(xiii) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination

{xiv)

of the records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance
with sections 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and details of such transactions
have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable Indian
accounting standards.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
internal audit provisions are not applicable to the Company. Accordingly, paragraph

3{xiv) of the Order is not applicable.
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(xv)

{xvi)

{xvii)

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-
cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with its directors. Hence
provisions of section 192 of Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.

a) Inour opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of
the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under clause 3(xvi)(a) and
{b} of the Order is not applicable.

b) In our opinion, the company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or
Housing Finance activities without a valid Certificate of Registration (CoR) from the
Reserve Bank of India as per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934;

€) In our opinion, the company is not a core investment company (as defined in the
Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) and accordingly
reporting under clause 3(xvi}(c) of the Order is not applicable.

d} In our opinion, the Group has no CIC, Hence reporting under this clause J(xviy(d)
will not araise.

The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our audit
and the immediately preceding financial year.

(xviit) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the

(xix)

year.

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of
financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying
the financial statements and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management
plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions,
nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that Company is not
capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they
fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state
that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state
that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we
neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a
period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as

and when they fall due.




MAHESHWARI & ASSOCIATES

Chartered Accountants

(xx} Since the provisions of Corporate Social Responsibility {CSR) of Companies Act, 2013 are not
applicable to the company, the reporting under clause 3(xx)(a) and 3(xx)(b) of the Order is
not applicable for the year.

(xxi) The financial statements are not consolidated financial statements, accordingly, reporting
under paragraph 3{xxi} of the Order is not applicable

For Maheshwari & Associates

Chartered Accountants

Fiwmmm

Sateesh Patil T
Partner

Membership No.: 227311
UDIN: 22227311AJZQEH4237

Place: Bengaluru
Date: 30th May 2022




ADD REALTY LIMITED
Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2022

{Amount in Rs. '003)

Particulars Note As at 31st March As at 31st March
Na, 2022 2021t
ASSETS
Nen-current assets
{a) Property, Plant and Equipments 3 3,15,221.39 3,29,937.05
(b) Financial Assets
- Investments 4 1,58,715.75 1,68,270.38
- Loans 61,146.27 1,841.07
- Other Non Current Financial Asset 8,543.14 13,265.14
5,43,626.55 5,13,313.64
Current assets
(a) Financial assets
- Trade Receivable 7 3,407.26 16,354.00
- Cash and Cash Equivatents 8 1,606.49 214.95
- Loans 9 21,000.00 -
- Other Current Financial Assets 10 125.19 -
(b} Current Income tax Receivable (Net) 3 2,307.18 2,221.58
{c) Other Current Assets 11 118.89 -
28,565.01 18,790.53
TOTAL ASSETS 2,72,191.56 5,32,104.17
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a} Equity Share capital 12 1,47,148.30 1,47,148.30
{b} Other Equity 13 2,06,223.13 2,14,543.19
Total equity 3,53,371.43 3,61,691.49
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
{a) Financial liabilities
- Borrowings 14 27,602.74 24,645.30
- Other Non Current Financial Liabilities 15 . 2,000.00
(b) Provisions 16 325,95 197.95
(c) Deffered Tax Liabilities 28 9.350.73 23,314.45
37,279.42 50,157.71
Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
- Borrowings 17 86,408.70 51,101.48
- Trade payables 18
dues to micro and small enterprises - -
dues 1o nthers 1,220.64 37,515.10
- Other Current Financiat Liatilities 19 25,125.43 25,125.43
(b) Other current liabilities 20 68,782.72 6,511.28
(¢} Provision 21 3.22 1.69
1,81,540.71 1,20,254.98
Total liakilities 2,18,820.12 1,70,412.69
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILTIES 5,72,191.56 5,32,104.18
The notes are an integral part of these financial statement
Corporate Information & Significant Accounting Policies 1to?
29 & 30

Contigencies & Commitments

As per our Report of even date.

For Maheshwari & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg.No. 311008F

.

Sateesh Patil
Partner
membership No, 22731

N\ For and on behalf of the board

\
mersmhi Puk

Director
DIN : 00035800

—

eepti Rathare

Director
DIN : 02671640

Company Secretary
Membership No. A57605

Place: Bengalury
Date : 30th may 2022

Place: Bengaluru
Bate : 30th May 2022




ADD REALTY LIMITED
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March 2022

{Amount in Rs. '000)

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particul
arficuiars Notes 3ot March 2022 31st March 2021
Income
Revenue from Operations 22 - 25,015.00
Other Income 23 10,708.90 13,399.86
Total Income 10,708.90 38,414,86
Expenses
Employee Benefit Expenses 24 7,204.26 5,191.05
Finance Cost 25 ©.859.15 7.361.24
Depreciation and Amortization Expenses 26 22.52 5,697.04
Other Expenses 27 2,752.56 2,287.37
Total Expenses 19,838.49 20,536.71
Profit/{loss) before exceptional items, Prior Period items and tax (9,129.59) 17,878.16
from centinuing operations
Exceptional / Prior Period item -
Profit/(loss) before tax from continuing operations {9,129.59) 17,878.16
Tax Expenses 28
Current tax -
Income tax for Earlier Year (1,499.01) 155.65
Deferred tax (10,917.10) 7,053.69
{12,416,11) 7,209.34
Profit for the year from Continuing Operations 3,286.52 10,668.82
Other Comprehensive Income (OCH)
Items of OCI not to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent
periods:
Re-Measurement gains on defined benefit plans {28.42) 8.35
Income Tax effect 7.15 {2.17)
Items of OCl to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods:
Fair value Changes On Investments 14,681.63 (2,871.96)
Income Tax effect (3,053.78) 567.37
Other Comprehensive Income for the year 11,606.58 (2,268.41)
Total Comprehensive Income for the year (8,320.06) 8,400.42
Earnings per share - Basic and Diluted {Nominal value Rs. 1 per share) 31 0.02 0.07
The notes are an integral part of these financial statement
1to?

Corporate Infarmation & Significant Accounting Policies

As per our Report of even date.

For Maheshwari & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg.No. 311008E

- K
Sateesh Patil
Partner
Membership No. 227311

Place: Bengaluru
Date : 30th May 2022

For an\d on bebalf of the board

Anil Kumar Sethi
Director
DIN : 00035800

Deepti Rathore
Company Secretary
Membership No. A57605

Place: Bengaluru
Date : 30th May 2022

Pukhraj Jain
Director
DIN : 02671640

e S




ADD REALTY LIMITED
Statement of Cash flows for the year ended 31st March 2022

{Amount in Rs, 000)

. For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars
31st March 2022 31st March 2021
A. Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before tax from Continuing Operations (9,129.59) 17,878.16
Adjustments to reconcile profit befare tax to net cash flows:
Depreciation 22.52 21.58
Fair value Changes On Investments (14,653.21)
Amortisation Expenses - 5.675.46
Finance Expenses 9.859.15 7.361.24
Fair value change in Borrowings 2,957.44 2,640.57
Profit on sale of Property, Plant and Equipment (7,343.59} -
Lizbilties Mo tonger reguired written back (2,245.19) (1.77}
Impairment of financial Assets 1,926.72 -
Interest Received (470.28) (212,45
Finance Income on Financizl Assets {619.37) (13,182.34)
{19,695,36) 20,180.45
Working capital adjustments:
Decrease/{increase) in Trade & Other Receivables 12,946.74 116,352.23)
Decrease/{increase) in Loans (59,305.20) 2.303.11
Decrease/ (Increase) in Other Non Current Financial Asset 4,722.00 (13.265.14)
Decrease/(increase) in Other Current Financial Assets {22,432.54) 8.480.37
Decrease/(Increase) in Other Current Assets (118.89} 225.00
Decrease/(Increase) in Trade & Other Payables {34.049.31) 2,682.92
Decrease/ (Increase) in Other Non Current Liability {2,000.00) -
Decrease/{increase) in Other Current Liabilities & Provision 62.400.97 3.448.40
(57,531.59) 7,702.87
Income tax paid / (Refund) (1,413.41) 1.293.96
Net cash flows from operating activities {A) (56,118.18) 6,408.91
B .Cash flow from investing activities
Sale/(Purchase) of Property, plant and equipment 22.036.73 (14.01)
Purchase of investments 9,.554.63 (16,605.17¢
Sale of Investment 1,967.66
Finance tnceme on Financial Assets - 13,182.34
Interest, 470.28 212.45
Net cash flows used in investing activities (B) 32,061.65 (1,256,72)
C. Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds of Borrowings 46,439.99 2,126.69
Repayment of Borrowings {11,132.77) -
Finance Expense (Net) {9,859.15} (7,361.24)
Net cash flows from/{used in) financing activities (C} 25,448.08 (5,234.55)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 1,391.54 (82.36)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 214.95 297.31
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year {refer note 8) 1,606.49 214.95
Changes in Liability arrising from Financing activities for the year ended 31st March 2022 (Amount in Rs. '000)
tst April 2021 Proceeds Repayment Fair Yalue Changes | 31st March 2022
Borrowings - Mon Current (Refer Note-14) 24.645.30 - - 2,957.44 27.602.74
Borrowings - Current (Refer Note-17) 51.101.48 46.439.99 11,132.77 - 86,408.70
75,746.78 46,439.99 11,132.77 2,957.44 1.14,011.44
Changes in Liability arrising from Financing activities for the year ended 31st March 2021
1st April 2020 Proceeds Repayment Fair Value Changes | 31st March 2024
Borrowings - Non Current {Refer Note-14) 22,004.73 - 2.640,57 24,645.30
Borrawings - Current {Refer Note-17) 48,974.79 2,126.69 51,101.48
70,979.52 2,126.69 - 2,640.57 75,746.78

As per our Report of even date.

For Maheshwari & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg.No. 311008E

L

Sateesh Patil
Partner
Membership No, 227311

Place: Bengalury
Date : 30th mMay 2022

Fo

il Kumar Sethi
Director
DIN : 00035800

Place: Bengaluru
Date : 30th May 2022

- e ——

nd on Behalf of th
I\
! )

Director
DIN : 02671640

Deepti Rathore
Company Secretary
Membership No. A57605




ADD REALTY LIMITED

Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2022

A} Equity Share Capital

{Amount in Rs. '000)

Particulars As at 31st March | As at 31st March
2022 2021

Equity shares of Re 1 each issued, subscribed and fully paid

Balance at the beginning of the reporting period 1,47,148.30 1,47,148.30

Changes in equity share capital during the year - -

Balance at the end of the reporting period 1,47,148.30 1,47,148.30

B) Other Equity

For the year ended 31st March 2022

(Amount in Rs. 000}

Equity
Capital . .
1 | o t of Ret d
Particulars Capital Reserve Redemption m.mnc:E Revaluation Genera oﬂ.uo:m.: Q e m_.:m Total
Premium Reserve Reserve Reserve Financial earnings
reserve
Instruments
Balance as at 1st April 2021 11,5980.73 31,225.00 1,20,052.84 796.82 24,983.44 1,25,845.47 (1,00,341.12) 2,14,543.18
Profit for the year - . - - - - 3,286.52 3,286.52
Add- addition - - - - - - « -
Cther comprehensive income for the year, net of tax - - - - - - (11,606.58) (11,606.58)
Total comprehensive income B - - - - - (8,320.08) 8,320.06)
Balance as at 315t March 2022 11,980.73 31,225.00 1,20,052.84 796.82 24,983,44 1,25,845.47 (1,08,661.18) 2,06,223.12
For the year ended 31st March 2021 {Amaunt in Rs, "000)
Equi
Capital Securit Revaluatio Gereral | ¢ Mu:mﬂ £ Retained
Particulars Capital Reserve Redempticn .mnc: Y evaluation ener oS.n m. 0 N g.:m Tetal
Premium Reserve Reserve Reserve Financfal earnings
reserve
Instruments
Balance as at 1st April 2020 11,980.73 31,225.00 1,20,052.84 796.82 24,983,44 1,25,845.47 (1,08,741.53) 2,06,142.77
Profit for the year - - - - - - 10,668.82 10,668.82
Add- Additions - - - - - - R -
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax - - - - - - {2,268.41) (2,2658.41)
Total comprehensive income far the year - - - - - - 8,400, 41 8,400.41
Balance as at 31st March 2021 11,980.73 31,225.00 1,20,052.84 796.82 24,983.44 1,25,845.47 {1,00,341,12) 2,14,543,18
The notes are an integral part of these financiat statement

As per our Report of even date.

For Maheshwari & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg.No. 311008E

-

bl
Sateesh Patil

Partner
Membership No, 227311

Place: Bengalury
Date : 30th May 2022

Forland ob behalf of the hoard

-

-

r'd
Anil Kumar Sethi Pukhraj Jain

Director Director
DIN : 00035800 DIN : 02671640

Place: Bengalury
Date : 30th May 2022

Deepti Rathore
Compary Secretary
Membership No. A57605




ADD REALTY LIMITED
wokes to financial statements as at 31st March 2022

(%

.01

CLompany backgrouna
The company 1s primarity engaged in pusiness of dealing in properties and investing in infrastructure Projects.

Significant accounting policies

Basis of preparation and presentation
(a) Statement of compliance
These financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the

Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015.

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except wnere a newly fssued accounting standard is initially adopted or a
-eviston to an existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use.

iiz) Basis of measurement
The financiai statements have been preparea on a historical cost convention and on an accrual basis, except for the following
rnaterial items that have been measured at fair value as required by relevant Ind AS:

1. Certain financlal assets ana liabilities measured at fair value {refer accounting policy on financial instruments) and

11, Defined benefit and other long-term employee benefits.

{c) Going Concern Concept and its Impact on the company

Presently the company does not have any commercial operation running, due to the delays in the proposed projects, the
company has stopped buying lands for the intended project. In view of this management is contemplating on the new avenues
of business along with the evaluation of various business proposals. Presently the management has not come to any conclusion
in this regard, it still in the process of finalising the strategies for business plans. As the management is strongly of the view
that, going forward, the new avenues of business is commenced in the company, hence in the opinion of management, there
is no significant dobut on the going concem ability of the company. Accordingly the financial statements have been prepared
based on the Going Conem assumption basis.

Considering that the company s not fully operational, the covid 19, as such has no immediate effect to the company.
However, since the pendemic is affected all the industries including the Goverment authorities, this will have general impact
across the infrastructure industry including the company’s decission making for selection of new avenues of project.

{d) Use of estimates and judgement

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, lfabilities, income and
expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates. Estimates and undertying assumptions are reviewed on a periodic
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future

periods affected,

(e) Estimation of uncertainties relating to the global health pandemic from COVID-19 (COVID-19):

The Company has considered the possible effects that may result from the pandemic relating to COVID - 19 on the carrying
amounts of Assets, Liabilities and investments in subsidiaries and associates. In developing the assumptions relating to the
possible future uncertainties in the global economic conditions because of this pandemic, the Company, as at the date of
approval of these financial statements has used internal and extemal sources of information.

(f) Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification. An asset is
treated as current when it is:

- Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal cperating cycle,

- Held primarily for the purpose of trading,

- Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

- Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after
the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liabitity is current when:
- It is expected to be settied in normal operating cycle,

“ - It is held primarily for the purpose of trading,

- It is due to be settled within twetve months after the reporting perlod, or
- There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the Uiability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current,

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classifled as non-current assets and liabititles,

The operating cycle s the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash
equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

_ T w W i o R — - — e — e — _




ADD REALTY LIMITED
Notes to financial statements as at 31st March 2022

0%

2.03

2,04

“roperty, piant and equipmeni.
tinder the previous GAAP fIndian GAAP), property, plant and equipmeni were cairied in the paiance sheet at their carrying

value being the ¢ost of acquisition or construction tess accumulated depreciation.

The cost of property, plant and equipment includes freight, duties, taxes and other incidental expenses relating to the
acquisition and installation of the respective assets. The present value of the expected cost for the decommissioning of an
asset after its use is included 1n the cost of the respective asset if the recognition criteria for a provision are met, Borrowing
costs directly attributable to acgquisition or construction of these assets which necessarily take a substantial period of time to

get ready for their intended use are capitalized,

Advance pald towards the acquisition of assets outstanding at each balance sheet are shown under capital advances. The cost
of property, plant and equipment not ready for their intended use before such date, are disclosed as capital work in progress.

Depreciation is provided on a straight line method, at the rates and manner prescribed in Schedute Il of the Companies Act,
23,

intangible Assets are stated at cost of acquisition Less accumulatea amortisation. Amartisation is done on straight line basis.

Impairment of non-financlal assets

The (ompany assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that an asset or a group of assets
¢ompriging a cash-generating unit may be impaired. If any such indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an
asset Is required, the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount, An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount is determined
for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other
assets or groups of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds Its recoverable amount, the asset is
considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value fn use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair
value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. tf no such transactions can be identifled, an
appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for
pubticly traded companies or other available fair value indicators.

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations, which are prepared separately
for each of the CGUs to which the individual assets are allocated. These budgets and forecast calculations generally cover a
period of five years. For longer perfods, a long-term growth rate 1s calculated and applied to project future cash flows after
the fifth year. To estimate cash flow projections beyond periods covered by the most recent budgets/forecasts, the Group
extrapolates cash flow projections in the budget using a steady or declining growth rate for subsequent years, unless an
increasing rate can be justified. In any case, this growth rate does not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the
products, industries, or country or countries in which the entity operates, or for the market in which the asset is used.

For assets excluding goedwill, an assessment 1s made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an indication that
prevdously recognised impaiment losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such indication exists, the Group estimates the
asset’s or CGU’s recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed onldy if there has been a change in
the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The
reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impaimment Loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years, Such reversal is recognised in the statement of profit or loss unless the asset s carried at a revalued amount, in which
case, the reversal is treated as a revaluation Increase.

Revenue recognition
Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue

can be rellably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made. Revenue s measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or recelvable, taking Into account contractually defined terms of payment, net of taxes or duties
collected on behalf of the government. Further, The Company uses significant judgments while determining the transaction
price allocated to performance obligations .

Other income
Interest income 1s recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future

cash payments or receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the
gross carrying amount of the financial asset or to the amortised cost of a financial liability. When calculating the effective
interest rate, the group estimates the expected cash fiows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial
instrument, (for example, prepayment, extensfon, call and similar options} but does not consider the expected credit losses.
Interest income is included in finance income in the statement of profit and loss.

Dividends
Revenue is recognised when the Company’s right to receive the payment is established, which is generally when

shareholders approve the dividend. P -




ADD REALTY LIMITED
Notes to financial statements as at 31st March 2022

205 feases
The Company evaluates if an arrangement quaiifies to pe 2 lease as per the requirements of Ind AS t16. [dentification of &
lease requires significant judgment, The Company uses significant jucgement in assessing the lease term ({including
anticipated renewals) and the applicable discount rate.

The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease, together with both periods covered by an
option to extend the lease if the Company 1s reasonably certaln to exercise that option; and periods covered by an option to
terminate the lease if the Company is reasonably certain not to exercise that option. In assessing whether the Company is
reasonably certain to exercise an option to extend a lease, or not to exercise an option to terminate a lease, it considers all
relevant facts and circumstances that create an economic incentive for the Company to exercise the option to extend the
lease, or not ta exercise the option to terminate the lease. The Company revises the lease term If there is a change in the
non-cancellable period of a lease,

The discount rate is generally based on the incremental borrowing rate specific to the lease being evaluated or for a
portfolio of leases with similar characteristics.

2.06 Financlal instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity

instrument of another entity,

A Financial Assets

a) Classification
The company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:

- those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income, or through

profit or loss), and

- those measured at amortised cost.
The classification depends on the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the
cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or other comprehensive income,
For Investments in debt Instruments, this will depend on the business model in which the investment is held. For investments
in equity instruments, this will depend on whether the company has made an firevocable election at the time of initial
recoghition to account for the equity Investment at fair value through other comprehensive Income.

b} Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised nitially at fair value plus, in the case of financlat assets not recorded at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the market place (regular
way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.

<) Subsequent measurement

model whose objective 15 to hold asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual cash terms of the
financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding. Interest income from these financial assets is accounted in profit or toss using the effective interest rate
method. Impaiment losses, forex gain / loss and gain / loss on derecognition of financial asset in this category is recognised
in profit or loss.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FYTOCH: A financial asset is measured at FYTOCI, if it 1s
held withing a business model whose objective fs achieved by both from collection of contractual cash flows and selling the
financiat assets, where the assets” cash flows represent sclely payments of principal and interest. Further equity instruments
where the company has made an irrevocable election based on its business model, to classify as instruments measwred at

FYTOCI, are measured subsequently at fair value through other comprehensive income.

Debt instruments - Movemnents in the carrying amount are taken through other comprehensive income {OCI), except for the
recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognised in
profit and loss. When the financial asset s derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised In OCl is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss and recognised, Interest income from these financial assets is included in other
income using the effective interest rate method.

Equity instruments - Movermnents in the carrying amount are taken to OCl and there is no subsequent reclassification of fair
value gains and losses to profit or loss. Dividend from such investments are recognised in profit or loss.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss {FYTPL): A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above
categories are subsequently fair valued through profit or loss. All gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss.




ADD REALTY LIMITED
Motes to financial statements as at 31st March 2022

) Impairment of financial asseis

The company assesses on a forward L0oking Das1s the expected credit kosses associated with its assets carried at amortised
cost and FVTOCH debt instruments, The ympairment methodology applied depenas on whether there has been a significant
ncrease in credit rsk.

For trade receivables, the company applies the simplified approach specified by Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments, which
requires expected tfetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition of the receivables.

«) Derecognition of financfal assets

A financial asset is primarily derecognised when;

- The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

- The company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
recetved cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the
company has transferred substantfally all the risks and rewards of the asset, or {b} the company has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, It evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the
company continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the company's continuing involvement. in that case,
the company also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured con a basis
that reflects the rights and obligations that the company has retained.

B Financiat liabilitles

a) Classification

The company classifies its financial liabilities in the following measurement categories:

- those to be measured subsequently at fair vatue through profit or loss, and

- those measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity's business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the

cash flows,

b) Inktial recognition and measurement

The company recognises financial liabilities when it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the fnstrument. All
financial liabilities are recognized at fair value on initial recognition. Transaction costs that are directty attributable to the
issue of financial Uabilities, that are not at fair value through profit or loss, are reduced from the fair value on initial
recognition. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issue of financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss are expensed in profit or loss.

c) Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Amortised cost: After initfal recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the Effective interest rate (EIR) method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an
integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation {5 included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.
Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term.
This category also includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the company that are not designated as hedging
instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS 109. Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for
trading unless they are designated as effective hedging fnstruments.

Financial Uabilities at fair vatue through profit or loss: Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or toss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or Loss are designated as such at the initial
date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For tiabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/
losses attributable to changes in own credit risk are recognized in OCI. These gains/ loss are not subsequently transferred to
Statement of Profit and Loss. However, the company may transfer the cumulative gain or toss within equity. All other changes
in fair value of such liability are recognised in the statement of profit or loss. The company has not designated any financial
{iability as at fair value through profit and loss.

Derecognition of financial Liabilities

A financial Uability is derecognised when the obligation under the Uability is discharged or cancelled or expires, When an
existing financial liability ts replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original
liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the

statement of profit or loss.
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T Financial guarantee contracts
The fair value of financial guarantees is determined as the present value of the difference in net cash flows between the
contractual payments under the dedt Instrument and tne payments that wouid be required without the guarantee or the
sstimated amount that would be payable to a third party for assuming the obligations.

i1) as Guarantor

Financial guarantee contracts are recognised as a financial liability at the time the guarantee is issued. The liability 15
initially measured at fair value and subsequently at the higher of the amount determined in accordance with Ind AS 109 and
the amount initially recognised less cumulative amortisation, where appropriate.

Where guarantees in relation to {oans or other payables of associates are provided for no compensation, the fair vaiues are
accounted for as contributions and recognised as part of the cost of the investment.

{1i} as Beneficlary
Financial guarantee contracts are recognised as a financial asset at the time the guarantee is taken. The asset is initially

measured at fair value and subsequently amortised over the guarantee pericd.

Where guarantees in relation to loans or other payables are provided by group companies for no compensation, the fair values
are accounted for as contributions and recognised as part of equity.

D Offsetting financial Instruments
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet where there s a legally
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there Is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and
settle the labitity simultaneously. The legalty enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be
enforceable in the normal course of business and In the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the comapany or the
counterparty.

2.07 Borrowings

2.08

2,09

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction ¢osts incurred. Borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in
profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method. Fees paid on the establishment of loan
facilities are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that some or all of the facility will
be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw down occurs, To the extent there is no evidence that it is
probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity services and
amortised over the period of the facility to which it relates,

Borrowings are removed from the balance sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or
expired. The difference between the carmying amount of a financial Hability that has been extinguished or transferred to
another party and the consideration paid, including any nen-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in
profit or loss as other gaing/ {losses).

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the company has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period. Where there is a breach of a material provision of a long-term loan
arrangement on or before the end of the reporting period with the effect that the liability becomes payabie on demand on
the reporting date, the entity does not classify the liability as current, if the lender agreed, after the reporting period and
before the approval of the financial statements for issue, not to demand payment as a consequence of the breach.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are caplitalised as part of the cost of the asset. All other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an
entity fncurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent
regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

Taxes

Current Income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at
the reporting date in the countries where the company operates and generates taxable income.

‘Current income tax relating to {tems recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other
comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in
OC| or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax retums with respect to situations in
which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Minimum alternate tax ("MAT’) paid in a year is charged to the statement of profit and loss as current tax. The company
recognizes MAT credit available as an asset only to the extent that there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay
normal income tax during the specified period, 1.e., the period for which MAT credit is allowed to be carrded forward. In the
year in which the company recognises MAT credit as an asset in accordance with the Guidance Note on Accounting for Credit
Available (n respect of Minimum Alternative Tax under the Income tax Act, 1961, the said asset is created by way of credit to
the statement of profit and loss and shown as ‘MAT Credit Entitlement’, The company reviews the ‘MAT credit entitlement’
asset at each reporting date and writes down the asset to the extent the company does not have convincing evidence that it
witl pay normal tax during the specified period. Deferred tax asset is defined in Ind AS 12 to include the carry forward of
unused tax credits, MAT Credits are in the form of unused tax credits that are carried forward by the company for a specified
period of time. Accordingly, MAT Credit Entitlement is grouped with Deferred Tax Asset (net) in the Balance Sheet.
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2.10

211

Deferred tax
Deferred tax i$ provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities

and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date,

‘Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for atl taxable temporary differences, except:

- when the deferred tax Uability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that
is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the acgounting profit noc taxable profit or
loss;

- in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, asscciates and Interests in joint
ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible ternporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be
utilised, except:

- when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of an
asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination ang, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;

- in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in
joint ventures, deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will
reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to atlow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become
probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the

reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other
comprehensive income or in equity}, Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction eithar in

OCl or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Tax benefits acquired as part of a business combination, but not satisfying the criteria for separate recognition at that date,
are recognised subsequently if new information about facts and circumstances change. Acquired deferred tax benefits
recognised within the measurement period reduce goodwill related to that acquisition f they result from new information
obtained about facts and circumstances existing at the acquisition date. If the carrying amount of goodwill is zero, any
remaining deferred tax benefits are recognised in OCl/ capital reserve depending on the principle explained for bargain
purchase gains, All other acquired tax benefits realised are recognised in profit or loss.

Provisions and contingent l{abllities
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation {legal or constructivej as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable

estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when
appropriate, the risks specific to the liabillty. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of
time is recognised as a finance cost.

Contingent liabilities recognised in a business combination

A contingent liability recognised In a business combination is initially measured at its fair value. Subsequently, it is measured
at the higher of the amount that would be recognised In accordance with the requirements for provisions above or the
amount inftially recognised less, when appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised In accordance with the requirements

for revenue recognition,

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original

maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an Insignificant risk of changes in value,

Cash flow statement
Cash flows are reported using the Indirect method, whereby net profit/ (loss) before tax 1§ adjusted for the effects of
transactions of a non-Cash mature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash recelpts or payments. The cash flows
from operating, investing and financing activities of the company are segregated.
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2.12 Cash dividend and non-cash distribution to equity holders of the parent

2.13

2.14

215

The Company recognises a liability to make casn or non-cash distributions to equity holders of the parent when the
distribution is authorised and the distribution is no longer at the discretion of the Company. As per the corporate laws in
India, a distribution is authorised when it Is approved by the shareholders. A corresponding amount 1s recognised directly in

equity,

Non-cash distributions are measured at the fair value of the assets to be distributed with fair value re-measurement
recognised directly in equity.

Upon distribution of non-cash assets, any difference between the carrying amount of the liability and the carrying amount of
the assets distributed #s recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Earnings per share
The basic camings per share is computed by dividing the net profit/ (loss) attributable to owners of the company for the year

by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during reporting period.

The number of shares used in computing diluted eamnings/ (loss) per share comprises the weighted average shares considered
for deriving basic eamings/ (loss) per share and also the weighted average number of equity shares which couid have been
issued on the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares,

Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of the reporting date, unless they have been issued
at a later date. In computing diluted eamings per share, only potential equity shares that are dilutive and which either
reduces eamings per share or Increase [0ss per share are included.

Segment reporting

Based on the "management approach” as defined in Ind AS 108 - Operating Segments, the Chief Operating Decision Maker
evaluates the company performance and allocates resources based on an analysis of various performance indicators by
business segments.

Recent Accounting pronouncements

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA") notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under Companies
{IndianAccountingStandards) Rules as issued from time to time.On March 23, 2022, MCA amended the Companies ({Indian
Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2022, as below.

Ind A516 - Property Plant and equipment- The amendment clarifies that excess of net sale proceed of items produced over
the cost of testing,if any, shalt not be recognised in the profit or loss but deducted from the directly attributable
costsconsidered as part of cost of an item of property , plant,and equipment.The effective date for adoption of this
amendment is annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2022. The Company has evaluated the amendment and there is no
impact on its standalone financfal statements.

Ind AS 37 - Provisions ,Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets - The amendment specifies that the 'cost of fulfilling” a
contract comprises the ‘costs that relate directly to the contract’. Costs that relate directly to a contract can either be
incremental costs of fulfilling that contract (examples would be direct labour, materials) or an atlocation of other costs that
relate directly to fulfilling contracts (an example would be the allocation of the depreciation charge for an item of property ,
plant and equipment used in fulfilling the contract).The effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual periods
beginning on or after Aprl 1,2022, although early adoption is permitted. Since the company does not have any projects on
hand, the impact of this is not going to be there,
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3 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
{Amount in Rs. '000)

Furniture & Office | |
Fixture Equipments Vehicle Total ]

Particulars Free hold Land*

GROSS BLOCK
As at April 1, 2020

iAdditions

Disposals

Adjustments (Transferred to other current assets)
Exchenge Differennce -
As at March 31, 2021 3,29,891.75
Additions

Disposals

Exchenge Differennce - -
As at March 31, 2022 3,15,198.61 11.11

3,29,891.75 111.11 4.17 1.16 3,30,008.19
- - 14.00 - 14.00

111.11 18.17 1.16 3,30,022.1%

14,693.14 - - - 14,693.14

18.17 1.16 3,15,329.05

ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
As at April 1, 2020 -
Depreciation Charge for the year -
Impairment

Disposals

Exchange Differennce

As at March 31, 2021 - 85.14 - - 85.14
Charge for the year - 21.19 1.33 - 22.52
Impairment

Disposals

Exchange Differennce -
As at March 31, 2022 - 106.33

63.56 - - 63.56
21,58 - - 21.58

1.33 - 107.66

NET BLOCK
As at March 31, 2021 3,29,891.75 25.96 18.17 1.16 3,29,937.05

As at March 3t, 2022 3,15,198.61 4.78 16,84 1.16 3,15,221.39
*Includes the land acquired through the assigment deed.

Notes:
i. With respect to the free hold land purchased through sale deed dated 14th May 2008 located at Coonoor having a carrying value of Rs. 58,550.00 thousands is held jointly

with other companies namely (M/s Meena Holdings Limited, M/s. Arihant Leasing And Holdings Limited, M/s. SPM Engineers Ltd, M/s. SPML India Limited, M/s. Zoom
Industrial Services Ltd, M/s. Rishab Commercials Private Limited, M/s. Abhinandan Enterprises Pvt Ltd, M/s. Subhash Systems Private Limited, M/s. Technomechanical
Services Pvt Ltd, M/s. Subhash International Pvt Ltd, M/s. International Constructions Limited and M/s. 20th Century Engineering Limited). All the companies have assigned
their interest in favor of ADD Realty Limited (the Company) vide assignment deed dated 14th May 2008.

i, With respect to the free hold land added to Property, Plant and Equipment on account of, approval of scheme of amalgamation by Hon'ble NCLT bench at Bangalore
through merger order vide dated 16th October 2017, giving the effective date of 1st April 2016, are still in the name of ADD Eco Enviro Limited (Formerly known as Sanmati
Leasures Limited ("Transferor Company No 17}. The Transferee Company is in the process of getting the title deeds transferred in their name. As on date the company is
awaiting the response from the District Registrar for the payment of stamp duty and registration of title deeds in the name of the company.,

iii. Lands of the Company at Vilapatti Village, Kodaikanal and Jain farms, Malur, Bagalur were given as Collateral Security for the financial assistance given by M/s Punjab
National Bank amounting to Rs. 55,000.00 (PY - Rs. 55,000.00) in favour of Subsidiary group Company namely ADD Technologies (India) Limited.

iv. The company has obtain the valuation report of land from the chartered engineer vide dated 14th May 2022 for the year ending 31st March 2022. Based on the report,
the fair value of the asset is Rs. 5,00,126.24 (PY - Rs. 5,15,969.44).
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FINANCIAL ASSETS

4 INVESTMENTS
tAmount in Rs. ‘000)

Particulars As at As at

31st March 2022 | 31st March 2021
(A) Investment in Unquoted Equity Shares Subsidiary and Associates (Fully paid up)
Valued at amortised cost uniess stated otherwise
Subsidiary
11,74,98,400 (March 31, 2021 11,74,98,400) Equity Shares of Re
1/- Each, fully paid up of ADD Industrial Park {Tamilnadu) Limited 1,17,498.40 1,17,498.40
26,00,000 (March 31,2021: 26,00,000) Equity Shares of Re 1/-
Each,Fully paid up of ADD Elcina Electronics Private Limiteqd 26.00 26,00

9,900 (March 31, 2021: 9,900) Equity Shares of Re 1/- Each, fuily
paid up of Ratnatary Mega Food Park Private Limited 100.00 100.00

62,66,100 (March 31, 2021: 62,86,100) Equity Shares of Re 1/-
Each, fully paid up of ADD Technologies India Limited 16,605.17 16,605,17

Associate
2500 (March 31, 2021: 2500} Equity Shares of Re 1/- Each, fully
paid up of Alcamey Venture Private Limited ' 200.0¢ 200.00

47,500 (March 31, 2021; 47500) Equity Shares of Re 1/- Each,
fully paid up of Leonis Austin Town Devlopers Private Limited 47,50 47.50

47,500 (March 31, 2021: 47500) Equity Shares of Re 1/- Each,
fulty paid up of Leenis HSR Devlapers Private Limited 47.50 47.50

47,300 (March 31, 2021- 47500) Equity Shares of Re 1/- Each,
fully paid up of Leonis Kormangala Complex Private Limited 47.50 47.50

fully paid up of Leonis
R T Nagar Deviopers Private Limited 47.50 47.50

47,500 (march 31, 2021: 47500) Equity Shares of Re 1/- Each,
fully paid up of Leonis Sadashivanagar Deviopers Private Limited 47.50 47.50

47,500 (March 31, 2021: 47500) Equity Shares of Re 1/- Each,
fully paid up of Leonis Vijaynagar Deviopers Private Limited 47.50 47.50

up}
Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income

87,500 (March 31, 2021: 87,500) Equity Shares of Re 1/- Each,
fully paid up of Delhi Waste Management Limited 32,306.75 32,306.75

Fair Yalue through Profit & Loss

1,000 (March 31, 2021: 1,000) Equity Shares of Re 1/- Each, fully

paid up of Mathura Nagar Waste Processing Co Limited 0.00 0.00
1,000 (March 31, 2021; 1,000) Equity Skares of Re 1/- Each, fully
paid up of Allahabad Waste Processing Co Limited 0.00 0.00
2,000 (March 31, 2021:2,000) Equity Shares of Re 1/- Each, fully
paid up of Splendor Realtors Private Limited 6,000.00 6,000.00
2,000 (March 31, 2021; 2,000) Equity Shares of Re 1/- Each, fully
paid up of Sunview Enclave Private Limited 6,000.00 6,000.00

{c} Investement in Debenture
Debenture of Re 100/- Each, fully paid up of ADD Energy

) . 5,038.17 -
Management Private Limited

(d) Investement in Mutual Fund
Fair Value through Other Comprehenstve Income
Canara Robeco Large Cap Fund units - 77,920 (March 31, 2021:

77,920) 1,637.89 1,549.06
1,85,697.38 1,80,570.38
Provision for Diminution in the value of the investements 26,981.63 12,300.00
Totat | 1,58,715.75 1,68,270,38
Current - .
Nen-Current 1,58,715.75 1,68,270.38
Aggregate value of unquoted investments 1,57,077.86 1,66,721.32
Aggregate cost value of quoted { nvestments 1,000.00 1,000.00
Aggregate Market value of gquoted investments 1,637.89 1,549.06

Aggregate amount of impairment in value of investments 26,982 12,300
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5 LOANS

{Amount in Rs. '000)

Particulars

As at
31st March 2022

As at
31st March 2021

Unsecured considered good unless stated

Loans to related party * 61,397.01 165.09
Less: Provision for impairement of loan 250.74 -

61,146.27 165.09

Others 1,675.98 1,675.98
Less: Provision for impairement of loan 1,675.98 -

- 1,675.98

Total 61,146.27 1,841.07

* Loan and advances due from companies in which Company's director(s) is / are director(s) / member(s).

Particulars

As at
31st March 2022

As at
31st March 2021

POM POM Recycling Pvt Ltd - 165.09

Ratnatary Mega Food Park Pvt Ltd 172.50 -

ADD Elcina Electronics Park Pvt Ltd 78.24

SPML Infrastructre Limited 50,184.80

ADD Energy Management Company Private Limited 10,961.47 -
Total 61,397.01 165.09

6 OTHER NON CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSSET

(Amount in Rs. '000)

Particulars

As at
31st March 2022

As at
31st March 2021

Advance against Issue of Debenture - 13,265.14
Deferred value of investment in Debentures * - 8,543.14 -
Total 8,543.14 13,265.14

the tenure of debenture investment.

* The balance represents the deferred portion of investment in debentures on account of discounting over
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7  TRADE RECEIVABLE

{Amount in Rs. '000}

Particulars

As at
31st March 2022

As at

31st March 2021

Unsecured, considered good
Outstanding for a period exceeding six months from the date
they are due for payment
Others

3,407.26

16,354.00

Total

3,407,26

16,354.00

Trade receivables ageing schedule for the year ended as on March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021:

(Amount in Rs, '000)

Outstanding for the following periods from due date of payment

Particulars
Not Due <& Months 6 months- 1| 1-2years | 2-3 Years | More than TOTAL
Year 3 Years
Undisputed Trade receivables - considered good - 3,407.26 - 3,407.26
16,354,00 - 16,354.00
Undisputed Trade receivables - credit impaired - -
Disputed Trade receivables - considered good -
Disputed Trade recejvables - credit impaired
Less: - credit impaired N
Total Trade Receivables - - - 3,407.26 - - 3,407.26
- - 16,354.00 - - 16,354.00
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8 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
(Amount in Rs. '000)

Particulars

As at
31st March 2022

As at
31st March 2021

Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks:

On current accounts 1,551.12 169.71
Cash on hand 55.37 45.24
Total 1,606.49 214.95

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates. Short-term deposits are made for
varying periods of between one day and three months, depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Group,

and earn interest at the respective short-term deposit rates.

LOANS

{Amount in Rs, '000)

Total

Particulars As at As at
31st March 2022 31st March 2021
Loans considered good - Unsecured
Loan to others 21,800.00 800.00
Less: Provision for doubtful loans 800.00 800.00
Total 21,000.00 -
10 OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSET
{Amount in Rs. '000}
As at As at
LOANS 31st March 2022 | 31st March 2021
Loans considered good - Unsecured
Advances to Emplyees 125.19 -
Total 125.19 .
Break up of financial assets
Particul As at As at
articufars 31st March 2022 | 31st March 2021
Investments 1,58,715.75 1,68,270.38
Loans 82,146.27 1,841.07
Trade Receivable 3,407.26 16,354.00
Cash and cash equivalents 1,606.49 214,95
Other Current Financial Assets 125.19
Total financial assets 2,46,000.96 1,86,680.41
11 OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
(Amount in Rs. '000)
Particulars As at As at
31st March 2022 31st March 2021
Balance with Government authorities 118.89 -
118.89 -
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12 SHARE CAPITAL

{Amount in Rs. '000)

As at As at
Particulars 31st March 2022 31st March 2021

Number Amount (Rs) Number Amaount (Rs)
Autherized
Equity Shares of Re.1/- each 14,71,50,000 1,47,150.00 14,71,50,000 1,47,150.00
2% Non cumulative Preference Shares of Re,1/- each 9,00,00,000 50,000.00 9,00,00,000 90,000,00
10% Non cumulative Preference Shares of Re.1/- each 2,30,50,000 23,050.00 1,30,50,000 23,050.00

26,02,00,000 2,60,200.00 26,02,00,000 2,60,200.00
Issued, Subscribed & Pafd up
Equity Shares of Re.1/- each, fully paid 11,80,00,000 1,18,000.00 11,80,00,000 1,18,000.00
Equity Sh.ares .of Re.1/- each, fully pal.d plfrsuant to scheme of 2,91,48,300 29,148.30 2,91,48,300 29,148.30
amalgmation without payment being received in cash

Total 14,71,48,300 1,47,148.30 14,71,48,300 1,47,148.30
11a. Reconciliation of number of shares
Equity Shares Equity Shares
As at As at
Particul
articulars 315t March 2022 31st March 2021

Number Amount(Rs) Number Amount(Rs)
Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 14,71,48,300 1,47,148.30 14,71,48,300 1,47,148.30
Shares Issued upon amalgmation during the year . - - -
Shares bought back during the year - . - -
Shares outstanding at the end of the year 14,71,48,300 1,47,148.30 14,71,48,300 1,47,148.30

11b. Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to shares

Equity Shares: The company has one class of equity shares having a par value of Re.1 per share. Each shareholder is eligible for one vote per
share held. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Anaual General
Meeting, except in case of interim dividend. In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of
the Company after distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholding.

11¢. Equity Shares held by holding company and subsidiary of holding company
Qut of the total number of shares 11,68,32,562 Equity Shares (PY: 11,68,32,562) are held by International Constructions Limited.

11d. Details of shares held by shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in the Company

Equity Shares
As at As at
Name of Shareholder 31st March 2022 31st March 2021
No. ‘:‘f;:ares % of Holding No. :fEISdhares % of Holding
International Constructions Ltd 11,68,32,562 79.40 11,68,32,562 79.40
Priti Devi Sethi 1,97,56,243 13.43 1,94,55,253 13.22
11e. There are no shares issued for consideration other then cash & shares brought back
11f, There are no unpaid cails from director & officers
11g. Disclosure of shareholding of promoters:
As at As at
Name of Promoters 31st March 2022 31st March 2021
No. of shares | %of total shares [ % of Change No. of shares %of total % of Change
shares
Anit Kumar Sethi - 0.00% -0.07% 1,06,990 0.07% 0.00%
Priti Devi Sethi 1,97,56,243 13.43% 0.20% 1,94,55,253 13.22% 0.00%
Deepak Sethi 6,850 0.00% 0.00% 6,850 0.00% 0.00%
Vineeta Sethi 52,72,825 3.58% 1.41% 31,91,825 2.17% 0.00%
Mast. Dev Sethi By F&G Mr. Deepak Sethi 5,06,850 0.34% 0.00% 5,06,850 0.34% 0.00%
Baby. Chahel Sethi By F&G Mr. Deepak Sethi 81,850 0.06% 0.00% 81,850 0.06% 0.00%
International Constructions Limited 11,68,32,562 79.40% 0.00% 11,68,32,562 79.40% 0.00%
Arihant Leasing & Holdings Ltd 16,38,150 1.11% 0.00% 16,38,150 1.11% 0.00%
Kripa Vyapaar Private Limited 72,720 0.05% 0.00% 73,720 0.05% 0.00%
SPM Engineers Ltd 7,750 0.01% 0.00% 7,750 0.01% 0.00%
Add Technologies Limited - 0.00% -0.01% 15,000 0.01% 0.00%
Total 14,41,75,800 97.98% 1.54% 14,19,15,800 96.44% 0.00%
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13 OTHER EQUITY
{Amount in Rs. '000)

As at As at
Particulars 31st March 2022 | 31st March 2021

[Capital Reserve

Opening Balance 11,980.73 11,980.73
Add: On account upon Merger . -
Less: Deletion during the year - -
Closing Balance 11,980.73 11,980.73
Capital Redemption Reserve

Opening Balance : 31,225.00 31,225.00
Add: Transfer from General Reserve . -
Less: Deletion during the year - -
Closing Balance 31,225.00 31,225.00
Securities Premium Reserve

Opening Balance 1,20,052.84 1,20,052.84
Add :Securities premium credited on account upon Merger - -
Less : Utilized during the year - -
Closing Balance 1,20,052.84 1,20,052.84
Revaluation Reserve

Opening Balance 796.82 796.82
Add: On account upon Merger - -
Less: Reversal of Revaluation Reserve - -
Less: Transfer to General Reserves - -
Closing Balance 796.82 796.82
General Reserve

Opening Balance 24,983.44 24,983.44
Add: Additions During the year -

Less: Deletion during the year -

Closing Balance 24,983.44 24,983.44
Equity Component of Financial Instruments

Opening balance 1,25,845.47 1,25,845.47
Add Opening balance - -
Less Adjustments -

Closing balance 1,25,845.47 1,25,845.47
Surplus in the statement of profit or loss

Opening balance (1,00,341.11) {(1,08,741.53)
(+) Net Profit for the current year (8,320.06) 8,400.42
Closing Balance (1,08,661,17) (1,00,341.11)
Total - Other equity 2,06,223.13 2,14,543,19

Nature and purpose of other reserves;
Capital Reserves: The excess of liabilities over the assets on amalgamation has been accounted as capital reserves,

Revaluation Reserve: Revaluation reserves is created on account of revaluation of assets of the company. This reserves may
be utilised or transferred to geral reserves or statement of profit and loss upon the sale of assets or the depreciation of such

assets.

Securities premium reserve: Securities premium reserve is used to record the premium received on issue of shares by the
Company. The reserve can be utilised in accordance with the provision of sec 52(2) of Companies Act, 2013.

Capital Redemption reserve: This reserves is created out of the free reserves which was utilised towards the redumption of
preference shares, to the extent of nominal value of the shares so redeemed.

General Reserve: This s the free reserves created as per the provisions of companies act, the reserves may be utilsed as free
reserves of the company for declaration of dividend.

Equity Component of Financial Instrument: The Company had the Compound Financial Instruments, which has been fair
valued as on trasition date and the same has been classified into the equity component and the financial liability and financial
asset based on the terms of contract . The equity component has been shown under the head other equity. The adjustments
are the amounts which has been reduced from equity upon the settlement of particular security before the maturity date.

Retained Earnings: Retained Earnings comprise of the company's accumulated undistributed earnings / (losses). This Reserve
represents the cumulative profits of the Company and effects of remeasurement of deflned benefit obligations. This Reserve

can be utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.
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14 BORROWINGS
(Amount in Rs, '000)

Particulars As at As at
31st March 2022 | 31st March 2021

Unsecured
Liability component of financial instrument * 27,602.74 24,645,30
Total 27,602,74 24,645.30
“2% Non-cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares:

Particulars Issued Date Redemption Date | Redeesmable at No of Shares
2% Non-cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares of Re. 1/- each for 20 years 31-Mar-16 31-Mar-36 2 4,47,50,000
from date of allotment.
2% Non-curnulative Redeemable Preference Shares of Re. 1/- each for 20 years 31-Mar-18 31-Mar-38 1 1,46,00,000
from date of allotment.
2% Non-curnulative Redeemable Preference Shares of Re. 1/- each for 20 years 31-Mar-14 31-Mar-36 2 1,35,95,000
from date of allotment.
2% Non-cumutative Redeemable Preference Shares of Re. 1/- each for 20 years 31-Mar-18 31-Mar-18 1 84,50,000
from date of allotment,
Total 8,13,95,000

The preference shares are redeemnable wholly or partly at the mutuat consent of both the allottee as well the Company, within a maximum period of 20 years from the
date of allotment. The preference shares shall carry dividend @ 2% per annum until redeemed and shall be payable on non-cumulative basis prior to any dividend or
ather distribution payable to equity shareholders, subject to the availability of adequate distributable profits for the respective financial year.

The preference shareholders shall not be entitled to receive notice, attend and vote at general meetings of the Company, except as otherwise provided by the
Companies Act, 2013 whereby the holders of such shares would be entitled to vote separately as a class, i.e. with respect to voting entitlement of preference
shareholders on matters / issues affecting substantive rights or liabilities of preference shareholders. The preference shareholders shall not be entitled to bonus or
right shares or participate in any profit of the Company except the right of dividend being attached to the preference shares, However, in the event of winding up or
liquidation of the Company, the paid up amount on preference shares will be paid back to the preference shareholders before any payment is made to the equity

shareholders.
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15 QOTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
(Amount in Rs. 000)

As at As at
Particulars 31st March 2022 | 31st March 2021
Advance received against sale of Share * - 2,000
Total - 2,000

* The advance was recelved for sale of share, However the transaction could not take place due to the unexpected death of the
buyer and subsequently the transaction was disputed by the legal heirs of the buyer and presently the case is pending with civil
court in Kolkata and pending for disposat.

16 PROYISIONS

(Amount in Rs, '000)
Particulars As at As at
31st March 2022 313t March 2021

For Gratuity (Refer note no 39) 325.95 197.95

Total 375.95 197.95

17 BORROWINGS
{Amount in Rs. '000)

Particulars As at As at
31st March 2022 31st March 2021
Unsecured
Loan from Related Party * 46,850.84 13,953.78
Loans from Director * 39,557.86 37,142.70
Total 86,408.70 51,101.48

* Repayable on demand with a notice pericd of 30 days along with Interest at the rate of 9% p.a. (PY - 9% p.a)

18 TRADE PAYABLE
{Amount n Rs, ‘000)

Particulars As at As at
315t March 2022 31st March 2021
Trade Payables ;
Totat outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises (Refer note 34) - -
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises 1,220.64 37.515.10
Total 1,220.64 37,515.10
Particulars As at 31st March 2022
Qutstanding for following perfods from due date of payment
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 1-3 years More than 3 Total
years
(1) MSME - - - - -
(i) Others 1,020.90 - - 199.74 1,220.64
3,393.54 - 34,121.56 - 37,515,10
{iii) Disputed Dues - MSME - - - - -
(iv) Disputed Dues -Others - - - - -
Total Trade Payable 1,020,90 - - 199.74 1,220.64
3,393.54 - 34,121.56 - 37,515.10

Terms and conditions of the above financial liabilities:

- Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on 60-day terms

- Cther payabtes are non-interest bearing and have an average term of six months

- Interest payable Is nomally settled quarterly throughout the financial year

- For terms and conditions with related parties, refer to Note 40

For explanations on the Company’s credit risk management processes, refer to Note 43,

- ——_ e — - - — —— w—— e —
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OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

(Amount in Rs. '000)

Particulars

As at
31st March 2022

As at
31st March 2021

Unsecured
Advance received against sale of Land
Form Related party *

25,125.43

25,125.43

Total

25,125.43

25,125.43

* Due to the non-completion of conditions imposed in sale agreement the company has not transferred the proposed land and
subsequently cancelled the sale agreement. The advance consideration received against the same is due for refund to the

party and the same will be repaid in subsequent period.

Break up of financial liabilities carried at amortised cost

As at As at
Particulars 31st March 2022 |  31st March 2021
Borrowings 1,14,011.44 75,746.78
Other Non Current Financial Liabilities - 2,000.00
Trade Payables 1,220.64 34,832.18
Other Current Financial Liabilities 25,125,43 25,125.43
Total 1,40,357.51 1,37,704.40

OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

{Amount in Rs. '000)

Particulars

As at
31st March 2022

As at
31st March 2021

Advance received against sale of Land 65,500.00 -
Audit fees Payable 62.10 54.00
Statutory Dues payable (Including the TDS and Stamp duty Payable) 3,220.62 6,457.28
Totai 68,782,.72 6,511.28
PROVISIONS

(Amount in Rs. ‘000)

Particul As at As at
articulars 31st March 2022 |  31st March 2021
For Gratuity (Refer note no 39) 3.22 1.69
3.22 1.69

Total
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22 REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

2
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(Amount in Rs. '000)

Particulars

For the year ended
31st March 2022

For the year ended
31st March 2021

Revenue from Consultancy Charges

25,015.00

Total

25,015,060

OTHER INCOME

{Amount n Rs, '000}

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31st March 2022 1st March 2021
Interest Received on loans 331.24 186.84
Interest Recetved on Fixed Deposit 30.51 3.30
Interest Recelved on Income Tax Refund 139.04 25.61
Finance Income oh Financial Assets 619.37 13,182.34
Profit on sale of Property, Plant and Equipment 7,343.5% -
Liabilities nolonger required Written back 2,245.15 177
Total 10,708.90 13,399.86

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

(Amount in Rs. ‘'000)

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particulars 315t March 2022 315t March 2021
Salary Expenses 7,033.92 5,035.71
Gratuity (Refer Note 39) 157.95 152.69
Staff welfare Expenses 12.39 2,65
Total 7,204.26 5,191,05

FINANCE EXPENSES

{Amount in Rs. '000)

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particulars 31st March 2022 | 31st March 2021
Interest on unsecured loans 5,952.47 4,720.67
Finance Cost on Financial Liability 3,906.68 2,640.57
Total 9,859.15 7,361.24
DEPRECIATION AND AMCRTIZATION EXPENSES
{Amount in Rs. '000)
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
N 31st March 2022 31st March 2021
Depreciation 22,52 21,58
Amortisation expenses - 5,675.46
Total 22.52 5,697.04
OTHER EXPENSES
(Amount in Rs. '000)
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
b 31t March 2022 315t March 2021
Bank Charges - 0.07
Payment to Auditor * 72.50 72,50
Printing & Statiohery 3.92 1.62
Communication Expenses - 0.20
Labour Charges 76.63 25.00
Miscellaneous Expenses 14,20 16.07
Maintenance Charges 94.36 96.66
Rates & taxes 79.44 136.52
Professional Fee 462.58 806.82
Provision for Doubtful Advance - 300.00
Travelling and Conveyance Expenses 2.1 330.91
Impairment of financial Assets 1,916.72
Total 2,752.56 2,287.37
* Payment to Auditers {Amount {n Rs. '000)
Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
arte 31st March 2022 315t March 2021
As Auditors
- Audit fees 50.00 50.00
- Limited review Certification 22,50 22.50
Total 72.50 72.50

Exclussive of Goods and service tax
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28 INCOME TAX ASSETS (NET)

f) The following tabie provides the details of income tax assets and liabilities as at 31 March 2022 and

31st March 2021:
{Amount in Rs. '000)

Particulars As at As at
31st March 2022 31st March 2021
a} Income Tax Assets : 2,307.18 3,720.60
b) Current Income Tax Liabilities - 1,499.01
Net Balance 2,307.18 2,221.58

if) The gross movement in the current tax asset/ ( Liability) for the years ended 31 March 2022 and
31st March 2021 is as follows:

Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended

31st March 2022 31st March 2021
Net current income tax asset at the beginning 2,221.58 1,083.27
Income Tax paid{Net of Refund) (1,413.43) 1,293.96
Current Income tax expense {1,499.01} 155.65
Net current income tax asset at the end 2,307.16 2,221.58

iif} The tax expenses recognised in statement of profit and loss for the year ended 31 March 2022 and
31 March 2021 is as follows:

For the year ended | For the year ended

Particulars 31st March 2022 | 31st March 2021
Income Tax expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss
Comprises;
Current income taxes (1,499.01) 155.65
Deferred income taxes (10,917.10) 7,053.69
Income tax expenses (net) (12,416.11}) 7,209.34

fv. A reconciliation of the income tax provision to the amount computed by applying the statutory
income tax rate to the profit before income taxes is as below
For the year ended | For the year ended

Particulars 31st March 2022 31st March 2021
Profit before income tax (9,129.59) (17,878.16)
Applicable income tax rate 25.17% 25.17%
Effect of expenses not allowed for tax purposes 6,003.29 8,539.53
Effect of income not allowed for tax purposes 7,962.96 13,182.34
Adjusted Total Income (11,089.26) 13,235.35
Set off of carried forward lossess 11,089.26 (13,235.35)

The taxable income under different head not allowed to
set off against the other income -
Adjusted total income from tax calculations.
Computed expected tax expense - -
Income Tax of Earlier Year (1,499.01) 155.65

Income tax expense charges to the statement of Profit
and loss {1,499.01) 155.65

v. Components of deferred income tax assets and liabilities arising on account of Temporary
differences are:;

Particulars As at As at

ar 31st March 2022 | 31st March 2021
Timing difference on tangible and intangible assets
depreciation and amortisation (15.74) (9.48)
On account of provision for Employee benefits (82.85) (50.25)
Onlaccount of Provision for Impairement and fair valuation (7,210.67) 2,012.17
of investments
Fair Value Changes- INDAS Adjustment 23,411.64 23,939.70
Carry forward of losses / unabsorbed depreciation (6,751.65) (2,577.69}
Deferred income tax asset 9,350,73 23,314.45
MAT Credit entitlement . - -
Total deferred tax liabilities/ (assets) (net) 9,350.73 23,314.45
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29 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
(Amount in Rs. '000)

Particulars As at As at
31st March 2022 31st March 2021

Claims against Companies not acknowledged as debt

Claims towards liquidated damages not acknowledged as debts by
the Company Against the above, debts of the like amounts are
withheld by the customers. However, the Company expects no . -
material liability to accrue on account of these claims

Disputed Statutory Demands

Corporate guarantees given to banks for financial assistance
extended to subsidiaries and other bodies corporate 45,000.00 45,000.00

Lands of the Company at Vilapatti Village, Kodaikanal and Jain
farms, Malur, Bagalur were given as Collateral Security for the
financial assistance given by M/s Punjab National Bank Rs.
53,000.00 (PY - Rs. 55,000.00} in favour of subsidiary Company
namely ADD Technologies (India) Limited.

5295.14* 5295.14*

* Cost of land which has been pledged

30 Capital and Other Commitments:

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for: Rs. Nil (PY -
Rs. Nil)

31 Earning Per Share
Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the

parent by the weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders of the parent (after
adjusting for interest on the convertible preference shares) by the weighted average number of Equity shares
outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of Equity shares that would be issued on
conversion of all the dilutive potential Equity shares into Equity shares.

The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:

Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
artic 31st March 2022 | 31st March 2021
Net profit available for Equity Shareholders 3,286.52 10,668.82
Weighted Average number of Equity shares 1,47,148 1,47,148
Basic and Diluted Earnings Per Share 0.02 0.07

32 Leases
Lease commitments — Company as lessee

The company had taken an office space taken for a period of 11 months in the previous year. The Company

has incurred Rs. Nil {31 March 2021: Rs. NiL) the short term lease paym For

value leases, the company recognizes the lease payments as an opf(ét e)ge 0 a straight-line basis
!

over the term of the lease, as allowed in IND AS 116.

N
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Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent
liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the
carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

Judgements: In the process of applying the company’s accounting policies, management has made the following judgements, which
have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Estimates and assumptions: The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year, are described below. The company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the
financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future develepments, however, may change due
to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the company. Such changes are reflected in the

assumptions when they occur.

Impairment of non-financial assets: Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its
recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The fair value less costs of
disposal calculation is based on available data from binding sales transactions, conducted at arm’s length, for similar assets or
observable market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. The value in use calculation is based on a DCF medel. The
cash flows are derived from the budget for the next five vears and do not include restructuring activities that the company is not yet
committed to or significant future investments that will enhance the asset’s performance of the CGU being tested. The recoverable
amount is sensitive to the discount rate used for the DCF model as well as the expected future cash-inflows and the growth rate used
for extrapolation purposes. These estimates are most relevant to goodwill and other intangibles with indefinite useful lives

recognised by the company.

Taxes: Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax
assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning

strategies.

Fair value measurement of financfal instruments; When the fair vaiues of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the
balance sheet cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques
including the DCF model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not
feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such as liquidity
risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial

instruments.

There are no MSME trade payable at the end of the year Rs. Nil (PY - Rs. Nil).

A disclosure with respect to segment reporting is not applicable, since the Company does not have more than one reportable
segment as identified by Chief Operating Decision maker (CODM).

Foreign Currency Earnings And Outgo Rs. Nil {PY - Rs. Nil).

There are no reported foreign currency exposures that have not been hedged by a derivative instrument or otherwise, hence the

disclosure of the same is not made.

CIF value of imports Rs. Nil (PY - Rs. Nil).
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39 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

A Defined contribution scheme: The company does not have any employee contribution scheme expenses.

B Defined benefit plans

Gratuity: In accordance with the Payment of Gratulty Act of 1972, the Company contributes to a defined benefit plan (the “Gratuity Plan"}
covering certain categories of employees. The Gratulty Plan provides a lump sum payment to vested employees at retirement, disability or
termination of employment being an amount based on the respective employee’s last drawn salary and the number of years of employment with

the Company,

The financial and demographic assumptions on annual basis used for valuation as at the Valuation Date are shown below. The assumpticns as at the
Valuation Date are used to determine the Fresent Yalue of Defined Benefit Obligation at that date;

Summary of financfal assumptions:

As at As at
315t March 2022 3st March 2021
Discount rate 7.27% 6.81%
Expected rate of increase in compensation level of covered employees 5.00% 5.00%
Summary of Demographic assumptions:
As at As at
31st March 2022 31st March 2021
Mortality Rate (as % of IALM (2012-14) (Mod.} Ult. Mortality Table) 100.00% 100.00%
Disability Rate (as % of above mortality rate) 0.00% 0.00%
Withdrawal Rate 5.00% 5.00%
Normal Retirement Age 70 years 70 years
Adjusted Average Future Service 26.29 Years 31 Years
Changes in the defined benefit obligation:
As at As at
Particulars 31st March 2022 | 31st March 2021
Defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the year 199.64 102.00
Current service cost 144,35 98.98
Past service coat - -
Net Interest cost 13.60 7.02
Sub-total included in profit or loss 157.95 105.99
Benefits paid
Return on plan assets {excluding amounts included in net interest expense} - .
Actuarial changes ariging from changes in financial assumptions (18.9%) 1.82
Actuarial changes arising from changes in demographic assumptions - -
Experience adjustments [9.48) (10.17)
Subtotal included in QCI - -
Contributions by employer
Defined benefit obligation at the end of the year 329.17 199.64
Charges in the fair value of plan assets:
As at As at
Particulars 31st March 2022 | 31st March 2021
Fair Yalue of Plan Assets at the beginning NA NA
Interest Income NA NA
Contributions by employer Na NA
Benefit Payments from Plan Assets NA NA
Remeasurements - Return on Assets (Excluding Interest Income) NA NA
[Fair Value of Plan Assets at the end NA NA
A guantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption for defined benefit obligations are as shown below:
As at 31st March, 2022 As at 31st March, 2021
Particulars
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
Discount rate by 0.5% 309.9 349.82 187.10 213.23
|Expected rate of increase in compensation level of covered employees by 1% 172.65 291.09 228.19 174.91
Withdrawal Rate by 5% 313.63 329.60 181.67 21.00

The sensitivity analyses above have been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on defined benefit obligation as a result of

reasonable changes in key assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting pericd.

The following payments are expected contributions to the defined benefit plan in future years:

Particulars As at As at
31st March 2022 31st March 2021
Within the next 12 months {next annual reporting period) 3.22 1.69
Between 2 and 5 years 30.45 15.75
More Than 5 years 843.55 522.74
Total expected payments 877.22 540,17

The average duration of the defined benefit plan obligation at the end of the reporting period is 14 years (PY - 15 Years}).
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40 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES:

A Information given in accordance with the requirements of Accounting Standard 18 on Related Party Disclosures:

(i} Holding Company
International Constructions Limited

(if) Subsidiary Company:
ADD Industrial Park [TamilNadu) Limited
ADD Technologies {India) Limited
ADD Elcina Electronics Park Pvt Limtied
Ratnatreya Megha Food Park Private Limited

{iif) Key Managerial Persons:
Deepak Sethi
Yineeta Sethi

(iv] Enterprises in which KMP/Relatives of KMP having significant influence or control:
Delhi Waste Management Limited
Meena Holdings Private Limited
ADD Energy Management Company Private Limited
POM POM Recycling Pvt Limited
Delhi Waste Management Majafgart Private Limited

(v} Enterprises in which KMP/Relatives of KMP not having significant influence or control:
SPML Infra Limited
SPML Infrastructure Limited

ADD REALTY LIMITED
Notes to financial statements as at 315t March 2022

B Aggregate related parties disciosurs:

[Amount in Rs, ‘000)

Transactions amount during tha year

Outstanding Balances

H]
Mo Particulars toans® | Loans® | T T purchase of | Redem Interest | Reiburseme
Advances Advances Investement | investment of Shap:m Interest Paid* Recelved | nt of Exp Debit Balance | Credit Balance
Recelved Paid
Holding Company
1 intemational Constructions Limited [ 550000 905000 ] - [ 1819.09] ] -] - | Tamar
| PY - 31st March 2021 [ 7500.00] 1,725.00 | | [ 100825 ] | | B 13,951.78
Subsidiary Companies:
1 JADD Industrial Park{TamilNaduj Limited 264.42 264.42 -
PY - 31st March 2021 216.84 36.84 - - - -
2 |ADD Elcina Electronics Park Pyt Limtied 78.24 - - - - 78.24
PY - 31st March 2021 - - - - -
3 |Ratnataray Mega Food Park 172.50 - - - 172.50
PY - 315t March 2021 - -
Enterprises in which IMP/Relatives of KMP having significant Influgnce or control;
1 |Delhf Waste Management Limited 35,500.00 2,000.00 - - - 1,107.04 - 34,607.04
PY - 31st March 2021 - - 15,150.00 16,605.17 20,000.00
z Delhi Waste Management Najafgarh Pvt Limited 14,500.00 16,500.00 101.79 - -
PY - 31st March 2021 - - - - - -
3 |ADD Energy Management Services Pyt Ltd 3,700.00 | 21,426,37 . 14,000.00 . 10,765.14
PY - 313t March 2021 3,800.00 6,900.00 - - 13,765.14
4 [POM POM Recyciling Pvt Limited 165.09 - - - - -
PY - 31st March 2021 - 165.09 - 165.09
Enterprises in which KMP/Relatives of KMP not having significant influence or controf:
1 /SPML Infrastructre Limited 55,400.00 5,215.20 - - 356.88 50,541.68 -
PY - 31st March 2021 10.00 10.00 - - - - -
2 [SPML Infra Lmited - - - - - 25,125.43
PY - 31st March 2021 - - - - 25,125.43
Key Managerial Person/ Relatives of Key Managerial Personnels
1 [Deepak Sethi - - - - 22.03
PY - 31st March 2021 - - - - - - - -
7 |Vineeta Sethi - - 2,410.16 - 3%,557.86
PY - 31st March 2021 3,150.00 7,950,00 3,105.%1 - - 37,141.70

*The amount is net of Tax Deducted at Source

€ Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties

The transactions with related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length transactions. Outstanding balances at the year-end are unsecured and interest free and settlement
occurs in cash. There have been o guarantees provided or received for any related party receivables or payables. For the year ended 31 March 2022, the company has not recorded any impairment of
receivables relating to amounts owed by related parties (31 March 2021; Rs. Nil). This assessment is undertaken each financial year through examining the financial position cf the related party and the

market (n which the related party operates.

D Loan received from holding company

The loan received from Key managerial person is intended to finance the project. The interest free loan is unsecured and repayable on dernand.

P - - e e —— -
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41 Fair values

The carrying value and fair vatue of financial instruments by category:

Assets and liabilities carried at amortised cost

(Amount in Rs. '000)

Carrying Value Fair Value
Particulars As at 31st March | As at 31st March | As at 31st March As at 31st March
2022 2021 2022 2021

Financial assets
Investments 1,34,714.57 1,34,714.57 1,34,714,57 1,34,714.57
Loans 82,146.27 1,841.07 82,146.27 1,841.07
Trade Receivable 3,407.26 16,354.00 3,407.26 16,354.00
Cash and cash equivalents 1,606.49 214,95 1,606.49 214,95
Other Non Current Financial Asset 8,543.14 13,265.14 8,543.14 13,265.14
Other Current Financial Assets 125.19 - 125.19 -
Total 2,30,542.93 1,66,389.74 2,30,542.93 1,66,389.74
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 1,14,011.44 75,746.78 1,14,011,44 75,746.78
Other Non Current Financial Liabilities - 2,000.00 - 2,000.00
Trade Payables 1,220.64 37,515.10 1,220.64 37,515.10
Other Current Financial Liabilities 25,125.43 25,125.43 25,125.43 25,125.43
Total 1,40,357.52 1,40,387.32 1,40,357.52 1,40,387.32

The management assessed that cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, trade payables,

approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments.

Assets and liabilities which have been carried at fair value through the profit and loss account.

and other current liabilities

(Amount in Rs. '000)

Carrying Yalue Fair Value
Particulars As at 31st March | As at 31st March | As at 31st March | As at 31st March
2022 2021 2022 2021
Financial assets
Investments 12,000.00 12,000.00 12,000.00 12,000.00
Total 12,000.00 12,000.00 12,000.00 12,000.00

The fair values of the unquoted equity shares have been estimated using a Net Asset Value approach, The valuation requires

management to make certain assumptions about the model inputs, including forecast cash flows, discount rate, credit risk and

volatility. The probabilities of the various estimates within

estimate of fair value for these unquoted equity investments.

the range can be reasonably assessed and are used in management's

The fair values of the Company’s interest-bearing borrowings and loans are determined by using DCF method using discount rate that
reflects the issuer's borrowing rate as at the end of the reporting period. The own nonperformarnce risk as at 31 March 2022 was

assessed to be insignificant.

Assets and (iabilities which have been carried at fair value through the other comprehenssive income.

(Amount in Rs. '000}

Carrying Value Fair Value
Particulars As at 31st March | As at 31st March | As at 31st March | As at 31st March
2022 2021 2022 2021
Financial assets
Investments 33,944.64 33,855.81 33,944.64 33,855.81
Total 33,944.64 33,855.81 33,944.64 33,855.81

Certain investments are not held for trading, instead they are held for medium or long-term strategic purpose. Upon the application
of IND AS 109, the company has choosen to designate these investments in equity instruments as at FVTOC| as the directors believe

this provides as a more meaningful presentation

value immediately in profit or loss.

for medium and long term strategic investment, than reflecting changes in fair

The fair values of the unguoted equity shares have been estimated using a Net Asset Value approach. The valuation requires
management to make certain assumptions about the model inputs, including forecast cash flows, discount rate, credit risk and

volatility. The probabilities of the various estimates within the range can be reasonably assessed a
estimate of fair value for these unquoted equity investments. In case of quoted investments, the fair

31st March 2022 has been adopted as the carrying value.

nd are used in management's
value of similar securities as at
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42 Fair value hierarchy

Level 1: Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2: Significant observable inputs other than quoted prices included in level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,

either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3: Significant uncbservable inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market data {unobservable

inputs).
(Amount in Rs. '000)
Particulars Fair value Fair value
hierarchy As at As at
(Level) 31 March 2022 | 31 March 2021
A Financial Assets
a) Measured at amortised cost
Investments (Unquoted) 2 1,07,733 1,22,415
Investments {Debentures) 2 5,038 -
Loans 1 82,146 1,841
Trade Receivable 1 3,407 16,354
Cash and cash equivalents 1 1,606 215
Other Non Current Financial Asset 2 8,543 13,265
Other Current Financial Assets 1 125 -
c) Measured at FVTOCI:
Investments (Unquoted) 2 32,306.75 32,306.75
Investments (Mutual Fund) 1 1,637.89 1,549.06
¢) Measured at FYTPL:
Investments (Unquoted) 2 12,000.00 12,000.00
B Financial Liabilities
a) Measured at amortised cost
Borrowings 2 1,14,011.44 75,746.78
Other Non Current Financial Liabilities 1 - 2,000.00
Trade Payables 1 1,220.64 37,515.10
Other Current Financial Liabilities 1 25,125.43 25,125.43

There were no transfers between Level 1, 2 and Level 3 during the year ended 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021,
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43 Financial risk management objectives and policies
The Company’s principal financial Habilities, other than derivatives, comprise (oans and borrowings, trade and other payables, and financial guarantee contracts. The
main purpose of these financiat liabilities is to finance the comapny’s operations and to provide guarantees to support its operations. The comapny's principal
financial assets include loans, trade and other receivables, and cash and cash equivalents that derive directly from its operations.

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and tiquidity risk. The Company’s senior management oversees the management of these risks. The Company’s
senfor management is supported by a financial risk committee that advises on financial risks and the appropriate financial risk governance framework for the
company. The financial risk committee provides assurance to the company’s senior management that the company's financial risk activities are governed by
appropriate policies and procedures and that financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the company’s pelicies and risk objectives,

Market risk

Market risk Is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument wilt fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market Ask comprises three
types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk, such as equity price risk and commadity risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include
loans and borrowings, deposits, FYTOC! fnvestments and derivative financial instruments.

Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The

Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily ta the company's long-term debt obligations with floating interest rates. The
company manages its interest rate risk by having a balanced portfolic of fixed and variable rate loans and borrowings.

Credit risk
Credit risk 1s the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a finandal instrument or customer contract, leading to a financfal loss. The company is
expased to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its financing activities, Including deposits with banks and financial

institutions and other financial instruments.

Trade receivables

Customer credit risk {s managed by the Company’s established pelicy, procedures and control relating to customer credit risk management. Credit quality of a
customer is assessed based on an extensive credit rating scorecard and individual credit limits are defined in accordance with this assessment. Qutstanding customer
recefvables are regularty monitored. as at 315t March 2022, the company had oy 1 customer (31 March 2021: 1 customer) who owed 100% of receivables

outstanding. .

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date en an individual costomer basis. The company evaluates the concentration of risk with respect to trade
recefvables as low, as the the customer {s Govemment body and operate in largely independent markets.

Liqufdity risk
The Company monitors its risk of a shortage of funds using a liquidity planning tool.

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted payments:
{Amount in Rs. '000)

As at 215t March 2022 On Demand | Less than 3 months Less than 3 More than 1 Total
months to 12 Year
months
Borrowings 1,14,011.44 - . 27,602.74 1,41,614.18
Other Financial Liabilities 25,125.43 - 25,125.43
Qther Current lability 68,782.72 68,782.72
Trade Payables - 1,220.64 1,220.64
As at 315t March 2021 On Demand | Less than 3 months Less than 3 More than 1 Total
months to 12 Year
meonths
Borrowings 51,101.48 - - 24,645.30 75,746.78
Other Financial Liabitities 25,125.43 2,000.00 27,125.43
Other Current liability 6,511.29 6,511.29
Trade Payables - 37,515.10 - 37,515.10

44  Capital management
For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital inctudes issued equity capital, convertible preference shares, share premium and all other equity

reserves attributable to the equity holders of the parent. The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to maximise the shareholder value. The
company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in tight of changes in economic conditions and the requirements of the financial covenants. Te
maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The
company monitors capital using a gearing ratlo, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. The Company includes within net debt, interest bearing loans
and borrowings, trade and other payables, less cash and cash equivalents.

{Amount in Rs. '000}

Particulars As at As at
31st March 2022 | 31st March 2021
Borrowings 1,41,614.18 75,746.78
Trade Payables 1,220.64 37,515.10
Other Financial Liabilities - 2,000.00
Other Hon Current Liability 25,125.43 25,125.43
Provisions 32917 199.64
Other Current Liability 68,782.72 6,511.28
Less: cash and cash equivalents {1,606.49) (214.95)
Net Debt 2,35,465.65 1,46,883.28
Equity 1,47,148.30 1,47,148.30
Other Equity 2,06,223.13 2,14,543.19
Capital and net debt - 3,53,371.43 3,61,691.4%
Gearing ratio 40% 29%

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company’s capital management, amongst other things, alms to ensure that it meets financial covenants.
interest-bearing loans and borrowings that define capital structure requirements. Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would permit the,
call koans and borrowings. There have been breaches in the financiat covenants of interest-bearing loans during the year. P s

{
No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capitzl during the years ended 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021. H
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45 RATIO

The following are analytical ratios for the

year ended March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021

Sr. No Particulars Numerator Denominator As at As at % of Explanation
31st March 2022 31st March 2021 | Variance | for Variance
{Note
Reference)
1 Current Ratio Current assets Current liabilities 0.16 0.16 0.70%
2 Debt-Equity Ratio Total Debt Shareholder’s Equity 0.32 0.21 54,06% 1
3 Debt Service Coverage Ratio Earnings available for debt service Debt Service 0.07 3.43 -97.84% 2
2 Return on Equity Ratio Net Profits after taxes Average Shareholder’s Equity 0% 3% -2.75%
5 Inventory turnover ratio Purchases of Goods Average Inventory NA NA NA
6 Trade Recefvables turngver ratio Revenue Average Trade Receivable 1.08 4.70 -76.93% 3
[q Trade payables turnover ratio Purchases of services and other expenses Average Trade Payables 0.14 0.06 124.76% 4
8 Net capital turnover ratio Revenue Working Capital -0.07 -0.38 -81.51% 5
9 Net profit ratio Net Profit Revenue -85% 47% -131.79% 5
10 |Return on Capital employed Earning before interest and taxes Capital Employed 0% 13% -12.68%
11 Return on investment Income generated from i nvestments Cost of Investments NA NA NA
Notes
1 Due to increase in borrowing and operating losses during the year the debt equity ratio has impact.
2 Due to increase in borrowing and consequent increase in finance cost and operating losses during the year this ratio has negative impact,
3 Presently the company does nat have any project on hand and the disproportionate decrease in revenue and trade receivable has impacted ratio.
4 During the year company has paid the long outstnading trade payables and hence there is positive impact in ratjo,
5 Presently the company does not have an

in working capital and hence this ratio has impacted negatively.

Y project on hand which has impacted the operating revenue and

46 The amounts and disclosures included in the financial statements of the previous year have been reclassified and regrouped whereever necessary,
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